The Honorable Julia Patterson


May 15, 2008

Page 2

May 15, 2008
The Honorable Julia Patterson






Chair, King County Council

Room 1200

C O U R T H O U S E

Dear Councilmember Patterson:
I am pleased to transmit to you legislation responding to two provisos in the 2008 Adopted King County Budget (Ordinance 15975).

Both provisos pertain to the Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention’s Community Corrections Division (CCD).  The first is found in Proviso P3, Section 19 of the ordinance and requires that the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) provide a report “detailing a review of the feasibility of implementing changes in how the county uses its community corrections programs.”  The second is found in Proviso P1, Section 51 of the same ordinance and requires that the Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention (DAJD) provide a report “detailing the results of its capacity analysis for its community corrections program.”  In March, I requested an extension of the original deadline for both provisos to May 15, 2008. 
In order to respond to the OMB proviso, in December 2007 OMB reconvened the Adult Justice Operational Master Plan (AJOMP) Advisory Group – comprised of representatives of the Superior Court, District Court, Office of the Prosecuting Attorney, Office of the Public Defender, Sheriff’s Office, the Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention and the Department of Community and Human Services – to guide this work.  The Advisory Group has been meeting regularly since December to consider changes to the use and capacity of community corrections.  A smaller work group of criminal justice system stakeholders was charged with carrying out the research and conducting the necessary analysis to produce an initial set of recommendations; this includes three recommendations for immediate implementation and 11 possible changes that will require further exploration and analysis.  Thus far, the process has laid the foundation for a more in-depth review of issues and ideas that may lead to better utilization of existing community corrections capacity.  The report lays out a plan for moving forward with this analysis and sets a rough timeline for making implementation decisions.
Some of the AJOMP Advisory Group recommendations for further exploration, if implemented, would have an impact on the size and geographic capacity of CCD alternatives.  Using this information as a starting point, a work group comprised of staff from OMB, DAJD, and Facilities Management Division (FMD) was formed to respond to the DAJD proviso.  In addition to reviewing the capacity recommendations of the AJOMP Advisory Group, they also considered the population forecasts for CCD alternatives that were submitted by two separate consultants in 2007.  Based on this information, preliminary capacity conclusions have been drawn and a plan has been laid out for moving forward with conducting additional analysis to inform potential CCD capacity expansion decisions.  As there are interdependencies between these decisions and several other jail and criminal justice facility planning efforts currently underway, the work moving forward will need to be closely aligned with the work plans for each of these projects.  

As directed in the DAJD proviso, FMD staff analyzed the office space vacated by the Department of Executive Services, Elections Division, on the fifth floor of the King County Administration Building in December 2007 as a possible location for CCD expansion.  This analysis concluded that the office space in the Administration Building is not a good option for housing CCD programs and alternatives.  However, with additional space in the Yesler Building being provided to CCD by the end of this year, there should be enough square feet to meet the existing space needs of the division.  This assumes no significant changes in the near future.    

Moving forward, there will need to be considerable coordination between the two work plans outlined in the proviso reports.  How King County uses its community corrections alternatives will direct and inform priorities for considering expansion of specific alternatives.  In addition, both efforts require similar data gathering and statistical analysis that will guide decisions moving forward.  Next steps for capacity expansion and use of CCD recommendations will be staffed by the same OMB project manager and the CCD Director and both will be guided and informed by the AJOMP Advisory Group.  These efforts will be coordinated and the ultimate set of recommendations will be mutually supportive and provide a logical framework for moving forward with making capacity or programmatic changes to CCD.
As you are aware, King County will experience significant budget challenges this year as well as moving into 2009 and beyond.  The known budget deficit will require significant annual budget reductions in the foreseeable future.  Any consideration of expanding or changing CCD programs and alternatives will need to take this into account.  Necessarily, the next steps work and analysis of possible changes and/or expansion to CCD alternatives outlined in each of the proviso reports will need to be carefully evaluated for cost implications as well as possible cost savings to the county.
On a positive note, on April 9, 2008, President Bush signed Second Chance Act of 2007.  This new legislation authorizes grant funding for states and counties to provide community-based prisoner re-entry services aimed at reducing re-offense and violations that result in re-incarceration.  Grant funding will be available to promote the safe and successful reintegration into the community of individuals who have been incarcerated.  Among the specific topics to be considered for demonstration grants will be projects to improve release and revocation decisions through the use of risk assessment tools.  My staff will be closely tracking the Department of Justice web site for the notice of funds availability associated with the Second Chance Act of 2007 as this may present an opportunity for King County to secure additional funding for community corrections programs and alternatives.
Both of these proviso reports were produced through the collaborative effort of several Executive departments and all of King County’s criminal justice agencies.  I want to express appreciation to the members of AJOMP Advisory and Work Groups for their willingness to come together and work collaboratively to improve King County’s criminal justice system.  
If you have questions or comments regarding either of these reports, please contact Bob Cowan, Director, Office of Management and Budget, 206-296-3434 or Nate Caldwell, Community Corrections Division Director, Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention, 206-296-3600.  My staff and I look forward to working collaboratively with the AJOMP Advisory Group in executing the next steps outlined in these proviso reports.

Sincerely,

Ron Sims

King County Executive
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